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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 
To 
The Members of, 
Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited 
 
Your directors have great pleasure in presenting the 36th Annual Report of Intermetal Engineers (India) Private 
Limited (“the Company” or “Intermetal”) along with the audited financial statements of the Company for the 
financial year (“FY”) ended 31 March 2024 (herein after known as “period under review”).   
 
1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY AND HIGHLIGHTS 

The highlights of the financial performance of the Company are as under: 
(Amount in Rs. Lacs) 

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23 
Revenue from operations  665.33 533.61 
Total Expenses 496.61 405.01 
Profit before Tax 235.06 239.80 
Tax Expenses 66.27 60.94 
Profit after tax 168.79 178.86 

 
2. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE/ STATE OF COMPANY AFFAIRS 

During the year under review, the revenue earned by your Company from operations was Rs. 665.33 Lacs as 
against Rs. 533.61 Lacs earned in the previous year (FY 2023) after accounting for the expenditure of Rs. 
496.61 Lacs as compared to Rs 405.01 Lacs in FY 2023, your Company has earned the net profit after tax of 
Rs. 168.79 Lacs in the current year as compared to Rs. 178.86 Lacs in FY 2023.   

 

3. DIVIDEND 
The board of directors of the Company does not propose any final dividend in this year. 

 

4. TRANSFER TO RESERVES 
The Board of Directors has decided to retain the entire amount of profits in the statement of profit and loss. 
For complete details on movement in reserves and surplus during FY 2023-24, please refer the statement of 
changes in equity and note 14 of financial statements for the period under review. 

 

5. DEPOSITS 
During the period under consideration, your Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of 
Section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. 

 

6. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS 
During the period under consideration, there were no changes in nature of business of the Company. 

 

7. SHARE CAPITAL & BUY BACK OF EQUITY SHARES 
There is no change in the share capital of the Company. Issued, subscribed and Paid-up share capital of the 
Company was Rs. 1,59,700/- having 1,597 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 100/- each as on 31 March 2024. 

  

During the year, the Company did not buy back equity shares of the Company. 
 

8. BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONAL (‘KMP’) 
There was no change in the Directors of the Company during the period under review. 
Mr. Parmod Sagar (DIN: 06500871) retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM) and being 
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. A resolution seeking shareholders’ approval for his re-appointment 
along with other required details forms part of the Notice of AGM.    



 

 

 

9. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD 
Four (4) board meetings were held during the financial year 2023-24 i.e. (26 May 2023, 07 August 2023,                             
4 November 2023 and 07 February 2024 and in respect of such meetings, proper notices were given, and the 
proceedings were properly recorded and signed. 

  

The names of members of the Board, their attendance at the board meetings are as under: -  
 

Name of Directors Number of meetings attended/ 
total meetings held during the F.Y. 2023-24 

Dr. Vijay Sharma 4 
Mr. Parmod Sagar 4 

 

10. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
Pursuant to the requirements under section 134(3)(c) read with section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
with respect to Directors Responsibility Statement, your Directors hereby confirm that -    

 

 in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along 
with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

 

 the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of 
the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for that period; 

 

 the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

 

 the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis,  
 

 the Company being an Unlisted Company is not required to make a statement on internal financial 
controls of the Company and 

 

 the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

11. AUDIT COMMITTEE AND VIGIL MECHANISM 
The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with related rules 6 and 7 of the Companies 
(Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 
 

12. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES, JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 
The Company does not have any subsidiary company or joint ventures. The Company is a 100% wholly owned 
subsidiary of RHI Magnesita India Limited, and RHI Magnesita N.V. is ultimate holding company. 
 

13. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 
All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year ended 31 March 2024 were on an 
arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business. Therefore, the provisions of Section 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 were not attracted. Further, there are no materially significant related party 
transactions during the year under review made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, or other 
designated persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. Thus, 
disclosure in Form AOC‐2 is not required. However, the disclosure of transactions with related party for the 
year, as per Accounting Standard on Related Party Disclosures is given in the note 39 to the Financial 
Statements as on 31 March 2024. 
 
 
 
 



 

 

14. AUDITOR’S REPORT 
The auditor has not made any observation in the auditors’ report, so no comments is required from your 
directors pursuant to Section 134(3)(f) of the Companies Act,2013. 

 

There have been no instances of fraud reported by the Auditors under section 143 (12) of the Companies Act, 
2013. 
 

15. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 
The Company complies with all applicable Secretarial Standards. 
 

16. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 
OUTGO 
A. Energy Conservation and Technology Absorption 

Even though operations of the Company are not energy intensive, the management has been highly 
conscious of the importance of conservation of energy and technology absorption at all operational levels 
and efforts are made in this direction on a continuous basis. The requirements of disclosure of particulars 
with respect to conservation of energy and technology absorption are not applicable to the Company and 
hence the same has not been provided. 

 

B. Technology Absorption 
During the period under review, there has been no changes in the technology used by the Company. 
 

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo 
During the period under consideration, foreign exchange earnings and outgo are as under: 

(Amount in Rs. Lacs) 
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23 
Earnings 27.65 42.98 
Outgo - - 

 
17. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

None of the employee has received remuneration exceeding the limit as stated in Rule 5(2) of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.  

 

18. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 
Risk Management is the process of identification, assessment and prioritization of risks followed by 
coordinated efforts to minimize, monitor and mitigate/control the probability and/or impact of unfortunate 
events or to maximize the realization of opportunities. 

 

There are no risks which in the opinion of the Board threaten the existence of the Company. 
 

19. DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION 
AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 
The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 seeks to 
protect women colleagues against sexual harassment at their workplace. 

 

Pursuant to the requirements of section 22 of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 read with the rules made thereunder, the Company has not received any 
complaint of sexual harassment during the period under consideration. 

 
20. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES 

ACT, 2013 
The Company has not made any investment, given guarantee and securities during the year under review. 
Therefore, provisions of Section 186 of Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable. 

 



 

 

 
 

21. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS 
No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred between the 
end of the financial year to which this financial statement relates and the date of this report.  
 

22. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
The Company is not required to constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as it does not fall 
within purview of Section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence it is not required to formulate policy 
on Corporate Social Responsibility. 
 

23. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS, COURTS AND 
TRIBUNALS 
No significant and material order has been passed by the regulators, courts, tribunals impacting the going 
concern status and Company’s operations in future. 

 

24. EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME 
The Company has not issued any Employee Stock Option Scheme. 
 

25. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
As per amendment in Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not required to prepare extract of annual return 
and the Company is not having any active website. Extract of Annual Return for the financial year ending                      
31 March 2024 is available for inspection during working hours. 

 

26. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
Your Directors' would like to place on record their sincere appreciation for the support and assistance 
extended by the Bankers and various Government authorities at all levels. 

 

Your Directors are thankful to the esteemed Members for their continued support and confidence reposed in 
the Company and its management.   

 
 
 
 
Place: Gurugram, Haryana 
Date:  22 May 2024 

By Order of the Board 
Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited 

Sd/- 
Dr. Vijay Sharma 

Chairman  
(DIN: 00880113) 
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f ndependent Auditors' Report (Continued)

Intermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most

significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters

were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole and in

forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the

Company as it is an unlisted company.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other

information comprises the information included in the Board's Report, but does not include

the financial statements and our auditors' reportthereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other

information and, in doing So, consider whether the other information is materially

inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledoe obtained in the audit or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated

lf, based on the work we have performed on other information obtained prior to the date of
our auditor s report, we conclude that there rs a material misstatement of thts other
inforrnation, we are required to reporl that fact We have nothing to report in this regard

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the

Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors of

the Company The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated tn

Section 134(5) of the Act, with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial

statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance

including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company

in accordance with Ind AS and otheraccounting principles generally accepted in India. This

responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance

with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing

and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate

accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and

design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were

operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounttng records,

relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and

fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.



lndependent Auditors' Report (Continued)

Intermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Fi nancial Statements (Conti nued)

In preparing the financial statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditors' Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditors report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs specified under section 143(10) of the Act, we
exercise professionaljudgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and per^form audit procedures responsive to
those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higherthan forone resulting from error, asfraud may involve collusion,

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Sectron 143(3)(i)

of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internalfinancial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness

of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.



f ndependent Auditors' Report (Continued)

Intermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited

Auditors' Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis

of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material

uncertarnty eii=ts related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on

the company's ability to continue as a going concern. lf we conclude that a material

uncertarnty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's repoft to the

related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,

to modify 6ur opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up

to the date of our audttor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause

the Company to cease to continue as a golng concern'

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements'

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation'

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, indivtdually

or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably

knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced' We constder

quantitative materrality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and

in evaluating the results oi orr work; and tiij 
'tb 

evaluite the effect of any identified

misstatements in the financial statements'

thosechargedwtthgovernanceregarding,amongothermatters.the
ing of ttre audit and Jignificant audiifindings, including any significant

control that we identify during our audit'

we also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied

with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them

all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards

From the matters communicated with those

matters that were of most significance in the

period and are therefore the key aud

report unless law or regulation precl

extremely rare circumstances, we oe

our report because the adverse consequenc(

to outweigh the public rnterest benefits of such communication



f ndependent Auditors' Report (Continued)

Intermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2O2O ('the Order'), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in
"Annexure A", a statement on the matters specified in the paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by Section 143(3) of the Act based
on our audit, we report to the extent applicable, that:

(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of
the accompanying financial statements;

(b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) the financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books
of account;

(d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act;

(e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
3'1 March 2024'from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of
the Act,

(f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
repoding of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls refer
to our separate Report in "Annexure 8". Our report expresses an unmodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal
financial controls over financial reporting;

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in

accordance with Rule '11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and accordinq to the
explanations given to us.

i. the Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position as at 31 March 2024;

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts, including derivative
contracts, for which there were anv material foreseeable losses as at 31 March
2024,

iii. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31

March 2024.



f ndependent Auditors' Report (Continued)

Intermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited

Report on Other Legal and Regutatory Requirements (Continued)

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities ('the intermediaries'), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in

any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ('the Ultimate
Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s)
or entity(ies), including foreign entities ('the Funding Parties'), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
tdentified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
('Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security or the like on

behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the management representations under sub-
clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended
31 March 2024.

vi. Based on our examination, which includes test checks, the Company, has
used an accounting software which did not had a feature of recording audit
trail (edit log) facitity

(h) With respect to the matter to be rncluded in the Auditors' Reporl under Section
197(16) of the Act,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not paid managerial remuneration to its directors during the current
year.

For Saini Pati Shah & Co LLP,
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No: 1 37904W4/V100622

h+ )-
Som Nath Saini

Partner
Membershio No: 093079

U Dl N : 2409307 9BKFVCU8646Mumbai, May 22,2024



f ndependent Auditors' Report (Continued)

Intermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' Report - 31 March 2024

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the lndependent Auditors'Reoort to the
members of the Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024,
we repoft the following:

(i) (a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,

including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets

(b) The property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the
management during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on

such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of physical verification
program adopted by the Company, is reasonable having regard to the size
of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of all the
immovable properties (other than propefiies where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee)
as disclosed in the financial statements. are held in the name of the
Company,

(d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment or intangible
assets during the year Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(i)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ii) (a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year

In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable We are informed
that no discrepancies of 10ok or more in the aggregate for each class of
inventory were noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book
recoros.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been
sanctioned any working capital limits from banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets at any point of trme of the year Accordingly
repofting under clause 3(iixb) of the Order is not applrcable to the Company.



Independent Auditors' Report (Continued)

Intermetal Engineers (lndia) private Limited

Annexure A to the lndependent Auditors' Report - 31 March 2024 (Continued)

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not maoe any
investments in, provided any guarantees or security or granted any advances in the
nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability
partnership or any other parties during the year. The Company during the year nas
granted interest free unsecured loans to other parties (employees) in respect of
which the requisite information is as below:

(a) Based on the audit procedures carrred on by us and as per the informatron and
explanations given to us, the Company during the year has granted interest free
unsecured loans to other parties (employees) as below.

I-
Particulars

ate amoqnt_during _!!e yqql gnded

Balance outstandi as at balance sheet date

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
audit procedures conducted by us, in our opinion the terms and conditions of
the loans granted during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest
of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, in the case of interest free
unsecured loans given to other parties (employees), in our opinion the
repayment of principal has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts have
been regular.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for
more than ninety days in respect of loans granted during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
ourexamination of the records of the Company, there is no loan granted falling
due during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans
granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to same parties

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted
any loans during the year either repayable on demand or without specifying any
terms or period of repayment

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)



f ndependent Auditors' Report (Continued)

Intermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Llmited
Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' Report - 31 March 2024 (Continued)

(iv) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not granted any loans, or provided any guarantees or security to the
parties covered under sections 185 of the Act. According to the information and

explanations given to us, the provisions of Section 1BO of the Act in respect of the
loans given, guarantees given, securities provided or investments made are not

applicable to the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is

not applicable to the Company.

(v) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not accepted any deposits or there is no amount which has been

considered as deemed deposit within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended)
Accordingly, repoding under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(vi) The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under
sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company's products/business
acttvity Accordingly repoding under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(vii) (a) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise,

Sales tax and Value added tax during the year since effective '1 July 2017,

these statutory dues have been subsumed into Goods and Services Tax.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of

our examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued
in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including
Goods and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance,
Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other material statutory dues have

been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities
though there has been delays in few instances Fudher, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no

statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above that have not been

deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under
the Income TaxAct, 1961 (43 of '1961)which have not been recorded in the books
of accounts.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company did not have
loans or borrowings from any lender during the year Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

(x)



f ndependent Auditors' Report (Continued)

Intermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited

Annexure A to the lndependent Auditors' Report - 31 March 2024 (Continued)

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and representation
received from the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit
procedures, the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank
or ftnancial institutions or government or government authority Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(ix)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not taken
any term loans from any lender Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we repod that the Company
has not raised funds on short term basis during the year, Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the
Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint
ventures (as defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2Q24.

Accordingly, reporling under clause 3(ix)(e) and clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is

not applicable to the Company.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any nroney by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convedible) during
the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xXb) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the period covered by our audit.

(b) No repod under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central
Government for the period covered by our audil

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the
representatron made to us by the management of the Company, there are no

whistle-blower complaints received by the Company during the year

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules,2014 are not applicable
to it Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company
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Intermetal Engineers (lndia) private Limited
Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' Report - 31 March 2024 (Continued)

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act,
where applicable, and the details of the related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounung
standards. Further, the Company is not required to constitute an Audit Committee
under Section 177 of the Act, and accordingly, to this extent, reporling under clause
3(xiii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has an internal audit system as required under section 138 of the
Act which is commensurate with the size and nature of its business

(b) We have considered the reporls issued by the InternalAuditors of the Company
till date for the period under audit

(xv) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company nas nor
entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with
them and accordingly provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-tA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporling under clause 3(xvi) of the Order is

not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash loss in the current as well as the
immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

(xix) According to the rnformation and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payntent of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and management
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing
has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not
an assurance as to the future viability of the Company We furlher state that our
repoding is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when
they fall due

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Conrpany does not
fulfill the criteria as specified under section i3b(1) of the Act read with the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. Accordingry,
reporling under clause 3(xx) of the order is not applicable to the companv

(XX)
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors' Report - 31 March 2024 (Continued)

(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit of financial
statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect
of said clause under this reoort.

For Saini Pati Shah & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No: 1 37904WW1 00622

Nath Sain i
Partner

Mumbai, May 22,2Q24
Membership No: 093079

U Dl N : 2409307 9BKFVC U8646

lA
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Intermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited

Annexure B to the Independent Auditors' Report - 31 March 2024

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act")

(Referred to in paragraph (2)(f) under'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements'
section of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
lntermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited ("the Company") as of 3'1 March 2024 in

conlunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on

that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial

controls with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were

operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chadered

Accountants of India ("the Guidance Note")

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design,

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
respect to financial statements based on our audit We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10)

of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal frnancial controls with reference to

ftnancial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and whether such controls ooerated effectivelv in all material
respects
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Intermetal Engineers (lndia) Private Limited
Annexure B to the Independent Auditors' Report - 31 March 2024 (Continued)

A uditors' Responsibility (Conti n ued)

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internalfinancial controls system with respect to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness Our audit of internal financial controls with respect to financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with respect to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal frnancial controls systenr with
reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles A company's internal financial controls wrth reference to
financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements

Inherent Limitations of lnternal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, tncluding the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For Saini Pati Shah & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Reqistration No: 137904WW1 00622

t:lf" )-1r
Sorn Nath Saini

Pa rtne r

Membershrp No, 093079
UDI N : 240930798KFVCU8646Mumbai, Mav 22.2024
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Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited

?)tt omornt ol" in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Balance sheet as at 31 March 2024

Particulars Note No.
As al

31 March 2024

As at

31 March 2023

ASSETS
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventones
Financial assets

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Other fil ancial assets

Current tax assets (net)

Other current assets

Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity share capital

Other equitY

Total equitY

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Provisions
Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Trade PaYables

- Total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprlses

- Total outstanding dues to creditors otherthan micro and small enterprises

Other fi nancial liabilities

Contract liabilities
Provisions
Current tax liabilities (net)

Other current liabilities
Total current liabiliti€s

Total liabilities

Total equitY and liabilities

Summary of material accounting policies

The accompanyrng notes are an integral part ofthese financial statements

As per our rePort of even date

For Saini Pati Shah & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No 137904WW 100622

^ It 0.'
L* /f

/l
Som Nath Saini
Paftner

MernbershiP No 093079

Place: Mumbai

Date:22MaY 2024

4

)
6

7

8

9

10

11

11

280 19

047

019

281.32

068

0.09

77 77 53 45

52.43

1,000 97

5.68

27 44

40.9s

IJ

l4

1.60

t,487.40

160

1,325 20

1,489.00 1,326.80

l5
l6

13.7 5

3220

2.10

37 82

- 

4s.% 39.92

t7

t8
19

20

2l
22

14 89

671

797
1.26

082

128

31.79

619

711
4.t4
0.92
221

3.96

78.88 96.24

1,567.88 r,423.04

3

to 5l

For and on behalfofthe board ofdirectors

Intermetal Ongineers (lndia) Private Limited

Vijay Sharma

Director
DIN: 008801 13

Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date.22uay2024 Date 22May2024

48.42

1,126.77

I 1.00

20 54

2.53
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Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited

1)it o^ouru ol" in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Statement of prolit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2024

Particulars
Note No. For the year ended For the year ended

3l March 20233lMarch2024

Income
Revenue from oPerations

Other income

Total income

Dxpenses

Cost of materials consumed

Changes in inventories offinished goods and work-in-progress

Employee benefits exPenses

Depreciation and amortlzatlon expense

Other expenses

Total exPenses

Profit before tax

Tax expense

- Cunent tax

- Deferred tax

- A justment in respect oftax ofearlier years

Total tax exPense

Profit after tax

Other comPrehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

- Remeasurement ofthe defined benefit plans

- Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year' net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Basic and diluted earning per share (face value ofRs 100 each)

Summary of material accounting policie

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our rePort of even date

For Salni Pati Shah & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No 137904WM100622

,J^ ,.'
/r' /1/

Som Nath Saini
Partner

MembershiP No 093079

Place: Mumbai

DaIe:22MdY 2024

23
aA

25

zo

27

28

29

bo)-JJ
66.34

)JJ OI

111 20

419 29

(28 50)

55 06

8.68

4208

321 57

(20.6e)

49 62

l8 28

)o z)

496.61 405.01

30

235.06

64 2s
(3 41)
)4J

239.80

a7 ))
(34 6e)

(1.se)

66.27 60.94

(0 27)

0.07

t62.20

10,569.35 11,199.75

For and on behalf ofthe board of directors

Intermetal Dngineers (India) Private Limited

178.66

36

3

I to 5l

**- "- l' - a,rrr,^^-.
A.- un14

Director
DIN: 06500871

Vijay Sharma
Director
DIN: 00880i 13

Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date:22MiY 2024 Dlte"22MaY2024



Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited

iii-o^ounrt oi" in INR Lakhs, tmless otherwise stated)

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2024

Particulars
For the Year ended

31 March 2024

For the year ended

31 March 2021

d-.h flows f-m operating activities
23s.06

868
(66 32)

(0 02)

1.31

003

239.80

18 28

(34.97)
(75 70)

(o 20)

054
(o 32)

Profit before tax

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization expense

lnterest income

Profit on sale ofproperty, plant and equlpment

Sundry balances written back

Allowance for expected credit loss

Gain on redemption ofnlutual fund units

Sundry balances written off

Operating cash flows before working capital changes

Wor nts:

1t illventones

6 trade receivables

0 other financial assets

(Increase) / Decrease in other assets

increase / @ecrease) in trade payables

Increase / (Decrease) in other financial Iiabilities

Increas€ / (Decrease) in contract liabilities

Increase / (Decrease) in provisions

Increase / (Decrease) in other liabilities

Cash g€nerated from oPerations

Income taxes Paid, net

Net cash flows generated from operating activities (A)

Cash flows from investing activities

ment

and equiPrleut

Dosit (net)

fund units

Interest received

Net cash flows generated from investing activities (B)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginrring ofthe year

Cash antl cash equivatents at the end ofthe year

Notes to cash flow statement:

1 Components ofcash and cash equivalents:

Cash on hand

Balances with banks

- In cunent accounts

- In deposit accounts (with original firaturity ofless than 3 months)

Total cash and cash equivalents

I rr nA 1.17.8J137.06

(64 98) t9s 7Z)

t78.74 t47.43

(24.32)
269

(0.04)

(l 6s)
(16.38)

086
(2 88)

275
(2.11)

(20 26)

35 l0
(0. t0)
024

(12 s9)

340
308

(3 67)
(4 80)

72.09 52.11

(1 34)

61 05

(e e7)

210 00

60 00

0.32

3l 93

53.71 292.28

r 25.80

1,000 97

344.39

656 58

013 033

2664 2064

1,100.00 980 00

Vijay Sharma
Director
DIN: 00880113

2TheabovecashllowstatementnasbeenpreparedundertheindirectmethodassetoutinlndASTstatelnentofcashflowsdsl33
of comparries Act, 2013 ('Act') iead with nue 4 of the companiJ, ii"ii- e.."r"ing standards) Rules 2015' as amended' and

the relevant Provisions ofthe Act

As Der our report ofeven date

Fo; saini Pati shah & co LLP

Charlered Accountants

Firm Registration No 137904W lW'100622

i
Partner
MembershiP No 093079

PIace: Mumbai
Date 22MaY 2024

Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: 22 MiY 2024 Daie: 22MaY 2024



Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unLess otherwise slated)

Statem€nt of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2024

A. DquitY Share CaPital

lestated balance at the

)eginning of the current
.o^^rtino neriod

lhanges in equity

;hare caPital during
'he crrrrent veaf

Balance at the end of
current rePorting
ncriod

g"latt"" at the beginning of the

:urrent reporting period

Changes in equitY

rhare capital due to
nrior oeriod error

160 160

Previous reporttng Pertou - -

Balance at the beginning ot the

previous reporting Period

Changes in equitY

rhare capital due to
nrinr neriod error

Restated balance at the

:eginning of the Previous
renorfinq neriod

Ohanges in equitY

rhare caPital during
fhe nrevious vear

Balance at the end of
previous reporting

*.q-------ra
160

Other EquitY
Current

Reserves and surplus Total

Caoital reserve Retained earnings

lalance at the beginning of curreft

'enort ins oeriod

0.91 1,324.29 t,325.20

n""g;t """*nting 
PolicY or Prior

Deriod error t.324 29 t.325 20
ilut"a u*n"" utthe beginning oftht
rrrrent reoorting Period 16220 162 20
io6-t comprenensive income for the

xrrrenl veaf
1,486,49 1,487,40

dii-ance x ttre end of curren
.onnrtino neriod

iiilico-accou nti n g poli cy or p rior

1,145 63
Situnce ur tt't" beginning of

Total compr"As*e income for
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lntermetal Engineers (lndia) private Limitecl
(."111 umrurtt.t ut.e in INR lqklt.s, tmle.s.s.othenri.;e sttttctl)

Notes to the financial statement for the 1,ear enclecl 3l vlarch 202{

Corporate In forrnation

Inlertnetal Ensineers (lndia) Privare Limited ('the conrpany') is dorniciled and incorporared in India unc.ler.rheprovisions ol lndian Corrlpanics Act. l-he registeled omce of rhe Cornpanl, is situated ar cala No. lg. Noblelncl'strial Estate No l' Navgliar. vasai Road (East). Palghar. \lLrnrbai - 40 l?01. The conrpanr is prinrarilyettgaged in the business ctlntanufactLrring anci sale ol'slide !are nrechanics antl relatecl c0rnponents.

statenlent of conpliance and basis ol'preparation and presentaririn

2. I Statement of com pliance

'l'he flnancial statements have been prepared in acco|clance ivith the lrrdian AccoLrnting Standarcls (lnd AS)as pel'the Conrpanies (lndian Accounting Stanclards) Rules.20lj as anrendecl and notified under secrion133 ol the companies Act. 20 lj ("the Act") and in contbrrniry with the accourltinq principles generalll,
accepted in India and other relevaut provisions ol.the Act.

These flnancial statelnents ibr the }'ear ended i I Marclr 2024 are approvecl by the Boarci of Directors at itsnreering held on 22 Mai: 2024.

2.2 Basis of preparation ancl measurement

-[hese financial statenrents.have'been prepareci on an accrural basis anci underthe historical cost convention
except fbr certain tlttancial instrurrents thal are nreasurecl at fuir values at the encl o['each reportinu pcriocl
( reter accountinu pol ict regardi nu Iinancial irrstnrrnents ).

Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that ri'or-rld be r-eceivecl to sell an asset or paid to transltr a liability in an ortierlylrallsilctioil betrveen market participants at the measllrelnent date. regardless olrvhether that price is directly
observable or estirnated using another valuation technique. In estlnaring the fair valLre ol. an asset or aliabiliry. the Cornpanl' takes into accounI tl.re characterisiics of the asset or liabilitl,. il rnarker participants
rvoLrld take those characteristics into accorrnt when pricing the asset or liability, nirl . ur.orr,.enreur clate.
Fair value tbr tneasurcment ancl.ior clisclosLrre purposes in these lrnancial staterlrents is deterrnined on such a
basis' except for nieasurenients that have sonre sinrilaiities to fair vaiue lrLrt are not tair value. such as net
realisable value in Ind AS I or value in use in Ind AS 16.

The Conrpany uses valuatiott techniques that are appropriate in the circurnstances ancl tbr rvhich sufflcient
data are available to measure fhir value. maximising the use of'relevant observable inputs and minirnizing
the use olurrobservable inputs.

AII assets and liabilities tbr rvhich fair value is measurecl or disclosecl in the tlnancial sraremenrs are
categorised rvithin the tair value hierarctrr', descrribeti as lbllorvs. basecl orr tlie Iorvest level input tlrat is
significant to the l-air value nreasuretrlent as a rlhole:

l.evel l- Quored (Unadjrrsteci) rnarke'd prices in the acrive rnarkets lbr iclentical assets or liabilirics.

l-evel l- valLration lechniclues tbr rvhich the lor.vest lei,el input that is signiticant to the lair vaLre
nreasurernenr is directlv or indirectlv observable.

Level i- Valuation techttiques fbr rvltich the lorvest level input that is significanr ro the fair value
rneasuretnent is rrnobservable.

")

ffi$
kI



Intermetal Engineers (lntlia) private Limited
(.lll unr<tunt,s ctre in INR lakhs, tmle,s,s otherv,ise .\tuted)

Notes to the financial st:rtement for the --v-ear cnded 3l March 2024

2.J Functional ancl presentation currenc.v

These flnancial statetncnts are prcscnfecl in Indian Rupees (lNR). rrhich is also the Conrpan.-.s firnctionalcurrenc\' All alnounls have beett rouncied-ol'['to the nearcst la]ilrs^ unless other\\,ise inclicatcil.

2.-l Current Versus non-current classification

All assers and liabilities have been classif ieci as current or non-cu[rcnt as pcr.thc c-ornparrr,.s n.rmnloperatins c1'cle and other criteria set out in tire Schcciule III to the Corupanils;tct.:ilt;. Basecl o, rhenature of pi'odLrcts ancl the time betr'r'een the acquisition of assets tbr processing and tlreir realisation incash ancl cash equivaients. the-,Companv has asccirtainecl its oper.atirrg c1,cle as li montlrs ibr rhe purposeol'cun'ent - non-current crassification oi'assets ancl liabilities.

2.5 Critical accounting judgements and use of estimates

Thc preparation of'financiai statetrettts t'equit'es the rnanagenrcnt [o mal(c cstiirrates ancl assLrrnptiors rlratatflect the reported alnoLlnts ol'assets. liabilities. incorrie ancl expenses anci tlisclbsur.e oi'c,ntinqent
liabilities at the date ol the flnancial statements arrd the results of operations <luring tlrc reporling periocl.-[he 

actual results ccluld clitfer tiorn those esrimates.

-['lte 
estintzltes ancl Lrncierlf illq asstllnptiolts are revierved on an ongoing basis. Rcvisrons to accotrnting

esljlnates are recognised in the perioci in rvhich the estimatc. is revisecj il the revision aft'ects onlv thatperiocl. or in the perioci of revision or fitture perirrrls ilthe revision aft'ects both currenr.,,d il;;;;"p;;l;u, "'

Propert"v, plant and equipment
The *arragerrent engages irrte'nar tcchnicar rc.rn ro assess the rernaininq Lrseiur ri'es and rcsicruar 

'alue 
ot.plopcrt). plant artcl eqLriprllent annLtall.r in orLler to dctenrinc the amoirnt ol depreciirtion ro Lre recordecl

dLrring anv reportillg 1lerioc1.-l-he nraniigenrent [re'lieves that the assignecl irsclirl lives ancl resiclual value are
reasonab le.

lncorne taxes
The nlanagement judgntent is requileci fbr the calculation ol provisir:n lbr incorre ta\es ancl cief'errecl rax
assets and liabilities. '[he Cornpanl'' reviervs at each balance slieet date the carrying aplogrlr ol det'erreci tax
assels, liabilities. I'he lactors usecJ in estinrates rnay dillbr fi'orn acrual oqrcor.ne l,hich coLrld lcaci ro
significant adjustnient to lhe amour.lts repolted in the trnirncial sratemeuts,

Contingencies
The tnanagenrent's judgenrent is required tbrestimating the possible ourf'low olresources, ilany. in respgct
oI continsenciesrc.lairnilitigations against the Coniparil.' as it is not possible to predict the ,urcome of
pending ntatters rvith acculacr..

Erpected credit losses on financial assets:'l-lte ilnpai|rrrent provisions of firlancial assl'ts and contract asscts are basecl on assurllptiorrs abotrt risli. ot'
dclatllt arld cxpectccl tirning ot'collectiorr 'l hc Cornparrr. uses.iLrclsrlent irr making these assurrprions and
sclectin-e. the inputs to the inrltairrrettt calcrrlation. basetj on rhe Cornpnnt,'t pnri history r.rl collections"
cl'lstolller's creciitrvorthiness. cxisting ntarket conclitions as well as tbn.rarcl loohing estirnites at the end ol
each repotlirru period.

Impairment of non-financi:rl assets

ffi
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Notes to the linancial statement for the year enclecl 3l Nlarch 202{

lm pairmen t of non-finirncial assets
lmpairrnent exists rvhen the carrying value ol. an asset or cash qenerating unit (..CCU..) cxceeds its
recoverable arnoltnt. rvhich is the higher of its flair value less costiof disposal ancl its value in use. Thcfair value less costs o{'disposal calculatiou is based on available clata llom binclins sales transactions.
conducted at arln's length- tbr sirnilar assets or observable marker prices less irr-crernental costs fbr
disposing of the asset. The value in use calcuiation is basccl on a discoLrnrecl cash f'lor.r (..DCIr..) nrocjel
Thc cash f'lo'"vs are derived liom the birclget tor lirture yeairs and do nor include r.esrructtiring acririties that
the'Companf is not yet cornntitted to or signilico,,i [i,tur. investrnents that rvill enhance rhe asser.s
perfbrrrrance ol the CGU being testecl. 'fhe recoverable arnoLrnt is sensitive to the discourlt r.tc uscd ibr
the DCF rrodel as r'r'ell as the expected tirtirle cirslr-inflolvs ancl the gr.orvth ratc'usr.cl tbr cxtrap6lation
pLlfposes.

lnvestnrent in equitl, shares:
The Corrlpanf is exposed to eqLritl,'price risk tl'orl investmcnrs in eqLritv securities rneasurecl at tair valLre
tlt|oLrgh protit and loss. The I\lanagernent nrorriturs the proportion ol eqLriq securities in its irrvesr:nent
porttbiio based on trarket indices. Material investnrents rvithin rhe porrlbiio are rnan;rgecl on an incliviclrial
basis and all bLrl' ancl sell decisions are approvccl bv the Boarci of'Direcrors.

Effective lnterest Rate (ElR) Mcthotl:
The Corlpany'recognizes interest income,'expense using a rate olrcturn rhat represents the best estirnate ol
a constant rate of retLlrn over the expected life ol the loans gii,en I taken- This estimation- bv nature.
reqttires an element of judgetrent regarcling the expectecl behaviour ancl lit'e-cycle of the instruri.lents. as
ivellas expected changes to other incomelexpense that are integral parts ol'1hc ilistrurlent.

Fair value meAsurenlents and v:rluation processes:
When the fair valttes ol financial assets and llnancial liabiliries recorciecl in the balance shccr cannot be
derived fiorn active markets. rhe)'are determiuecl using a vzrriet-r,ol'valuation techrlique that inclucle the use
ol valuation models. The irrptrts to these troclcls are taken f'r'orl observable marl<ets rvhere p,ossible. but
u'here this is not t'easible" a dcgrce ol.iLrdgement is required in esrablishing t'air values. Judgrnenrs include
conside'rations ol inputs suclt as liquiditl risk. creciit risk arrcl volatiiitl . Changes iu assunrptiqns about these
thcto's could al'l'ect rhe reported lair value ol flnancial instrLrnrents.

J. Surnmarl ol')Iaterial Accounting Policies

J.l Propertv, plant and equipment

All other iterrrs of propert)'. plant arnd eqr-ripnrent arc stated at historical cost lcss depreciation. I-listor.ical
cost ilicludes expenditr.rre that is directly attributable ro rhe acquisition olthe itenrs. The gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirentent ol an itern of propert). plant ancl equipnrenr is deter:mineI as the clifterence
beNveen the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asser and is recognized in the Staternent olprofit
and Loss 0n rhe date ofdisposal or retirelnent.

Subsequent costs are capitalised on the celrrving amoLlnt or lccugnisecl as a separate asset.;is appropr.iate.
onll'rthen future econotrtic benefits associated r.r,ith the itern are probable to I'lorv to the Cornpanr ancl cclsl
ol the itern catr be tneasured reliablv. All other repair ancl nraintenance are chargeci to the srarcrlent of
profit and loss durirrg the reporting period in which they.are incurrecl.

Dep|eciation on propem\'. plant and eqLriprrent is provided on straight-line basis over the usefi.rl lives oi
assets as detenrined on the basis of technical estirnates rvhich are sinrilar to thc usctirl lives as prescriLrec.l
Lrnder Schedr-rle II to the Corrpanies Act. 201i. Basecl on past experience und rnternal rechnical evaluatign.
the tnanagentent believes thar these usefirl lir'es represent the apprr-rpriale period o1- usage and tlreretbre.
considetecl to be appropriate fbr charging depretriation. Depreciatiort rrn aclclirion ldisposal) is provrcled on a
pro-rata basis i,e. tionr (Lrptolthe date orr *hich asse'ts is readt lbr tisc (ciispgsr'd rtl'y

4,
1)



lntermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited
(All utttounl.\ ttre itt INR lctkh.s, unle.t.y othenri,se .\'/(tte(l)

Notes to the linancial statement for the 1,ear ended 3l March 2021

Asscts rcsidtlal ValLics. dcprt'ciation rnetltoci rrrd Lrselul lives are revierved at the 0n(i ol'linancial year
considerinc the plrl srcal conclitirln of tlte assers or r.r henever rlrere are indicar6r.s ltlr rel.ie *, a,ci acljLrsts
residual ) ite prospectively.

Caitls altd losses ott disposals are determirred b1 coirparing proceecls r.r,irh car.^.ing arnorrlr, These are
includeci in the statenrent clf profit and loss rvithin other income.

lntangible Assets

Idc'ntiftable intangible assets are recognisecl vrhen the Cornpanl'controls the asset. it is probablu that luture
econr:rnic beneflts attributed to the asset r,i,ill florv to the Companv and the cost olthe asser can bc relialrlv
m easu red.

At initial recognition. the separatel-y acquirecl intangible assets are recognised at cost. Follorving initial
recognition. the intangible assets are carried at cost less an1'accumulatecl amortisation and accunrulated
irnpainnent losses. it'an1 .

Anrorlisatiort is recogniseci in statement of profit ancl loss on a straight-line basis over the esrinratecl useful
lives of intarrgible assets fi'ont the date thev al'e availirble tbr Lrse. The anrortisariorr period and the
arnorrisation rnethod are revierrccl at lcast at cach financial vcar encl. Ilthe expectecl usefirl lile olthe asset
is signilicantly dilterent fi'orn previoLrs e"!tirrates. Ihc anrortisarion perioci is chansecl accor.clingll . Cains or
losses arising fl'orn the retilernent or disposal ot'arr rntangible asset are detenllinecl as the dithrence
betrieen the net disposal proceeds and the carrv'rng amount ol rhe asset ancl recognisecl as income or
t'\pc11S0 in the statetnent o1'prolit arrd loss.

Foreign cu rrencv translation

lnitial recognition
Foreign currencv t[ansactions are recorcled in tite reportin{,t curret]c}., [r1,app15,ing to the firreign currencv
alnount the exchanse rate betrveen the lepolting currency' and the foreigu curreltcv at the date ol the
fransaction.

Conversion
Foreign cttrrency monetar,v items are reported using the closing rate. Non-rnonetar) itelns r,r,hich are
carried in lerms of historical cost denominated in a lorc.ign currencv are reported using rhe erchange rate af
the date olthe transaction. Non-monetarv items. ."vhich are nreasurecl at fhir value or orher sinrilar valuation
denominated in a fbreign currenc!', are translated using the exchange rate at the date when such value rvas
deterrn ined.

Erchange differences
Exchange cliff'erences arising on the settlernent of nronetan iterns or on reportinc. rnonctarv itenrs ol
Conrpanl'at rates clillerent itonr those at rvhiclr rhev rverc initiallr,recrtrcled during thc )car. or reportcci in
previous llnarrcial slatet.nents. are recogniseci as incorne or as e\penses in the y'ear in rvhich thel,arise
e\cept those arisins. f|out invcstnrents in non-inteural operations,

l.l Tares

Tax experrse cornprises of current and det'erred tar.

The inconie tax expense or credit fbr the period is the tax pay'able on rhe current period's taxable incorne
based on the applicable incoure tax rate ad.justed bv changes in clef-errecl rax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary ditferences and to unused tax losses.

1)
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The current income tax charge is calcuiatcci on thc basis of the tax larvs enacted or subsrantively enactcci atthe end cll'the reporting. pe.riocl. 
.Managentent periotlically' evaluares positions taken in rax returns *,itr.rrespect to situations in rvhich applicable tax reguiation is sublecr to intirpretation. It establishes proriisionsrvhc|e appropriate on the basis ni'o,rount, *rpeitecl to be paici to the tax authorities.

Def-erred inccltne tax is proviciecl in tirll...using the Iiabilit.v- method. on rerrporar.\,ciifterences arisingbetrveen tlte tax bases ol assets ancl Iiabilities ancl the'ir ciirr-"-ing ilrlor.nrrs in [he flpancia] staternents.Def'erred incotle ta\ is cletenllinr'cl using la\ riitl's r.r,r.r tau it 
'trrat 

har,e been enactc.cl or. sr-rbstiinri,llr.enacteci by the end ol the.r'eportirrg periociancl arc expccrctl to applv rvhen rhe related det,eir.,l i;;;;rr;';;iasset is rcaiiscd or the c1,-t'erreci incorne rar liubilitr is settled.

Dcftrred tax assels are recosnisecl lbr alldeciuctible temporarv'ditferences and unusecl tax losses on11.if itis probabie that firtu|c'taxable anrounts',r'ill be available to Lrtillse lhose terrporar_-,- clitlerences and losses.

Del'erred ta\ assets ancl lrabiliries are oflset li,hen thele is a legalll enlbrccable right to ofliet current raxassets and Iiabilities and rvhen the dcftn'eci ta.r balances relate"t. the sanre taxarioir authorirv. currerrr Laxassets and tax liabilities are ott'.set r'i'here.the enrity has a lcgally entbrceable right to olJlset and intenclseither to settle otr a net basis. or to realise rhe assct zrncl settle ,ri. rirrriliii ri,r,;i;.;;:,;r;; "

Current and def-erred tax is recosnised in the statenent of proiit ancl loss. eNoept to the ertent that it relatcsto items recognised in other cimprehensive incorne or directll..in equit,v. In this case. the tax is alsolecognised in other comprehensive inccrnte or clir.ectl1.. in ecluir;_ respectivel;,.

The carry'ing arrlollnt ol def'erreci ta\ asscts is revieq,ccl at thc end ol each r.eporting period and reducec.l tothe extent that it is no longer probable that sulficient taxable profits *,ill be availabie'to allou,all or parl ol.tlre ersset Io [:e recover.ed.

3.5 lnlentories

lnventories are vaitrcd at tlte lori'er ot cost (on flrst irr t'irst ouit basis in r.cspcct of'traclirru goocis ancl onrveighted average basis irr respect ol ran'. materials. work-in-proeress and t'lnislrecl goods) ar.rd the nettealisable valLre alie. provi<Jing fbr obsolescence anci other iosses. r.vhere consid.rid r...rrn,1-. Costrncludss all charges in bringirtg the goocis. including tieight. ocrroj and other-levies. Net realisable value isthe estirtlated sclling price in the ordinarr' coLlrse oi business less the esrimated cost ol conrplerion a.cJ t,eestirnated costs lleccssarl to rnake tlre sale. Stores and slrales inr,,enton.rs valuccl at cost.

3.6 Revenue recognition

Revenue fiom contract il'ith custotners is recognizecl rvhen the cornpany' satisfles the perfbrnranccrobligation by transf'er.of control of promisecl product or selvice to customers in an amount that reflects theconsideration r'vhich the Cornpanl'e\pects to receive in s'xchange fbr tlrose proclucts or services. control isdei'ined as the abiliry to direct the use olancl obrain sut:stantialhlall orthe econonric benefits li.o* an asset.Revenue excludes taxes collectecl lrcrn cLrstonrers.

Reventte is measured based on the transaction price. r.vhich is the expectecl consideratiop to be receiveci. t'the extent that it is highly probable that thele w'ill not be a signilicanr reversiii ol revenue in tirture periocis.l1'the corlsicleratiort in a cotlfract inclucles a variable on.,nunt. ot rhe inception of rhc contract. the Cornpanl,L'stilrates the alnounr olconsideration to \\,hich it u,ill be entitlecl in exchanse lbr translerring the goods orscrvices to the custotner.

A.
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Notes to the financiar st,rtement for the'ear ended 3l llarch 202{

Ar the ince prion ol thc conrract. the Cornpan-r icienrifles thc goods or. scrvices prontrsecl in f hc contract arttlassess uhich ol the pronrised goocls ur r.r,'i,,., shall be i,r.,riiri.,r iis scparztre perfbrrnarrce 
'rrligatiorrs.

;irlll]:S;t 
goods or scrvices give rise to separare perrbrrnance obtigarioris it rnii: o,:. .np.L.,te ot bcing

Reventte fionr the cieiiver,r' of prodr-rcts is recogniseci at the poinr in tirne rvhen control over the products ispassed to the'custorrers' rvlticlt is cleterrnined basecl on the incliviclual tn.ot.r,n, ugr*a i, the custornercon tract.

Contract balances:
The Cornpan,v classitles the right to consiclerarion in erchange lbr cieliverables as either a re.ceivable or asttnbilled revenlle'.A receivable is a right to consideration*that is unconditiorral Lrporr passasle ol.tirnt.contract asset' 

"r'hich 
is llresentecl ns,-,nbill.d rcvenue, is classifled as non-firranciiil asset as the corrlr.actualrighr to consideration is dependent on conrpretion ol.contrac,.rar *irestones.

A contl'act liabilitl is the obligatiorr to h'ansrer goorls or services to a customer fbr rvlrich the Cornpanl. hasreceived consideration (or att amoLtttt o1' consideratjon is ,ll-,al-n'u,, the custonrer. lf a custonrer paysconsideratii'rn befbre the Cotnpanv transl'els goods or services to thc custor-ner. a contract liabilitl,ist.ecognisecl tl'hen tlte pavlllent is ntade or the pi1'rnerrt is clue (t,hrchever is earlier). Cortract liabilities ar.crecrlgniseci as Ievenue \vhen the conrllanr peribrnrs utrclr,r the contract. ( ontr.acl liabilitics rnclLrcle. ancl arepl'est'11lr'd as 'ReVenLte receir,'etl in aclvance ' arrrl Advanccs fir,rrl crrstonrer.s'

3.7 Other I nconte

lnterest income
lntel'est itlcotre is recognize<l as it accrues irr the staternent oI profit and loss Lrsing etfective interest ratemethod.

J.8 Financialinstruments:

A flnancial i.strument is an), contract rhat sives rise to a irnanciar
liabilir;, or equity instrurnent olanother entitr,.

i. Financial assets

asset of'one entitr. anci a flnancial

Initial recognition and nreasu rement
All frnancial assets are recognisecl initialll"at lair value plus. in the case ol I'inancial iissets not recorcjecjat lzrir vaiue through profit arrd loss. n'ansaction costs that are attributable to the accluisition ot.thellnarrcial asset.

Subsequent measr.rem ent
For purposc's of subsetluent r"neasLlrement. flnancial assets are classifled as:r Debt instruments assets at alnollised cost

' Equit)' inst*rmenr measurecl at rair varue through profit or Ioss (FVTpL)

wheu assels are treasureci at tair vaiue. gains and losses are either recognised enrirell, in the state.rnentof profit and loss (i'e, lair valtre throLrgh profit ancl loss), or recognised i*n ottrer comprehensive incorre(i.e. t'air vah"re through otlrer conrpr.ehensive inconre). -
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Debt instruments at anrortised cost
A dcbt instrument is measured at anrortised cost (net of any rvrite doun for rrnpairment) il [:oth the
fbllor.ving conditions are lnet:
r the asset is helci to collect the contraclual caslr tloivs (rathel than to sell the insrrunrcnt prior tr.l its

contractual nraturit) lo rcalise its [air va]Lre changes). ancl
r thc coutractual tertrrs olthe flnancial asset give rise on specifiecl clates to cash fl<;rvs that are solel_v

pavrncnts olprincipal and interesl ( 'SPPl") 0n the principal anount oLrtsLanding.

Such llnancial irssets are subscqtientlr, nreasLrrecl at anrortised cost Lrsing the eft'cctive interest rate (t'lll)
nretlrod. Atrto1Lise'tl cost is calculated b1'taking into account an1 discount or prernrLrnr on acquisition arrcl

ties or costs that are an rntegral part olthc EII(. t he EIR anrollisatiorl is inclutied irr tlrrance inconre irr

the protit and loss. "lhe losses arising tr"om inrpairmenI are recognisecl statenrerrt ol profit and loss. 
'ilris

categor-v generally, applies to tradc and othcr rcceivablcs

Financial assets at lair value through OCI (FVTOCI)
A t'jnancial asset that nreets the follorving trvo conditions is nreasured at lair value through OCI unless
the asset is designatecl at lair value through protit and loss r.rrrcicr fair valr-ie option.
o l-he financial asset is held both to collect contractual cash floli's and to sell.
o The contractual terrrrs of the flnancial asset give rise on speciliecl clates l.o cash llou,s tlrirt are solclr

payrnents olprincipal and interest on the principal arnount outstanding.

InstrLrnrents included lvithin the FVTOCI categor) are measured initially as ri'ell as at each reporting
date at tair value. Fair value nloverlrents are recognized in OCL [-[orvever. thc C'orrrparry rccognizcs
inierest inconrc. impairrrrent losses & reversals anci foreign exchange gain or loss in the Proflt and Loss.
On derecognition ol the asset. curnLrlativc gain or loss previously' recognised in OCI is reclassif ied liorn
rhe cqLritr, to Proflt ancl L.oss. InterL'st cnrned rvhilst holding FV I-OCI clebt irrstrurrncnt is reported as

irrterest inconre using the EIR method.

Financial assets at [air value through prol'it irnd loss (FVTPL)
FV"fPL. is a residual categot1.fbr conipanr''s investnent il]stnlnents. Ant instrLrrncnts rvhich does not
nrcet tlie criteria fit catesorization ;rs at urutrrtized cost or as FVTOCI. is classilled as at l-V'f PL.

All investnrer''rr, in.tuA."a rvitlrin tlre FV'1'PL categor,v are nreasured ar lair value ii,ith all chanses
recognizecl in the Proflt artci Loss

ln addition. the company rnav elect to designate an instlunrent. r,r,hiclr otheru,ise nreets anrortizL'd cost or
FVTOCI criteria, as ar FVTPL. [-[orvever. such selectiou is allorveci onl1.' il doing. so reduces or
elinrinates a nreasurement or lecognition inconsistency (referred to as -accoLlnting nrisnratch'),

Equity investments
All equir,r" investnrents in scope of Ind AS 109 are nreasured at fair value. Ecprity,'instrurnents \.\,hich are

held Ibr trading are classified as at FVTPL. For allother ecluity instruments. the Company may" ntake an

irrevocable election to present in other corlpreherrsive inr:orle sLrbsccluent changes in the fair value.'ilte
Cornpanl'has not rlade irnv such election. This classification is rrarie on initial lecognitiorr and is

ilre voc iib le.

llthe Conrpanl decides to classiir an eclLriti insrrurnerrt as at FVOCI. then all lair valrie changcs on tlte
instrLrur,-'nt. c\cluclillg ciii,icicncls. arc recognizccl in the OCL 'l'here is no recycling ot'the arnounts fl'onr

OCI to P&L. even orr sak'of investnrent. Hor,r,ever. thc Cornpany'may tlansf-er the cumulative gain or
loss rvithin eqLrit;,'.

Equit;- instrurrents included r,r,ithin the FVTPL categor),itre nrearsllred at ihir valtie rvith all changes

recognized in the P&L.
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E.qLritrr investrnenr in subsidiary are measur.cd at cost.

Derecogn ition
When the Corrtpan.r, has h'ansf-ered its rights to receive cash florvs liom the asset or has assumeci an
obligation to pay'the received cash flolvs in firll r.vithout rnaterial delay to a thirci party under a'pass-
through' arrangement, it evaluates if and to lvhat extent it has retainecl the risks and re',varcls ol
ownership.

A t'intrncial asset (oI. *'here applicable. a parl. ol a llnancial assel 0r ltart ot'a Companl ol sintilar
tlnancial assets) is prirriarilv derecoqnisecl rvhen:
r The riglrts to receive cash floi,i,s fl'ont the asset have exprrecl. or
r Based on abor'e cvaluation. either

(a) the Conrpan;-'has transf'erred substantiall,,' all the rislis arrcl reri.ards olthc asset. or
(b) the Conrpanl' has neither transt'erreci nor lctained substantialll,' all the risks ancl rervards ol'the
asset. but has transterred control ilf tlre asset.

When it has neither transf'erreci nor rctainecl substantialll all ol'the risks and rervards ot'the asser^ nor
transf-erred control of thc assct. the Cornpnnv cont-inues to lecosnise the rransl'erreci asset to the extertr of
the Cornpanl,'s continuing involventent. In that case. the Companl.also rccognises an associated
liability'. J-he transt'en'ed asset and tlre associated liability are measured on a bases that rcflecr the lighrs
and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement thal takes the tbnn of a guarantee over the transt'erred asset is measured at the
lorver ol the original can'ying allollnt ol the asset anct the maximum amount of consideration that the
Companv cor-rld be required to repa!'.

lrnpairment of linancial assets
The Comparr-'- assesses af each clate ol balance sheet u,hether- a flnancial assct or a group oi'tlnancial
assets is intpailed. lnd AS l0t) ('Financial instrurnents')reqLrires expecled credit losses to be rrreasured

thiough a loss allou,ance. The Conrlranl recognizes Iiletinre erpectecl losses fbr all contract assets and'
or all tracle receivablcs that do not constitr"rte a tinancing transiiction. For all other tlnancial assets.

expected credit losses ale measured at an arnount cqual to thc l2-nronth expected credit losses or at an

ilrnount equal to the liit tirne expectu'cl credit losses il tlre credit risk on the flnarrcial asset has increased
signilicantll since initial recognition.

ii. Finilncial lia bilities

Initial recognition and measurenrent
Financial liabilities are classified. at initial recognition. as t'irrancial liabiiities at fhir valric throLruh plolit
and loss or at amortised cost, as appropriate.

All l'inancial liabilities are recognised initially at fair rralue and. in the case of loans and borrolvings^ net
of directly.' ath'ibutable tl'ansaction costs.

The Cornpany-'s Ilnancial liabilities include tracle pay.'ables anLl other payables.

Subsequent mensurern ent
'l-he 

measLrrenrent of tlnancial liabilities depends on their classiflcarion. as described belorv:

Financinl liabilities at arrortised cost
Atier initial recognition. interest-bearin.g Ioans ancl borrowings ancl other pa)'ables are subsequentlv
nreasured at arnortised cost using the EIR method. Cains and losses ale recognised in profit and loss
rvhen the liabilities are derecognisecl as rlell as through the ilR a,nortisation l)r(,uc\s.

ffim
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Arnortisecl cost is calculated by taliing iltto account anr cliscoirrrt or prerriurr r)n acrluisition iincl lccs or
costs thar are iilt itttegral part ol' tire lrlR. lhe LIR arnoltisation is inclucle.d as tlrrzince costs in the
statement ol profit arrcl Ioss.

Derecognition
A trrrancial liability is cierecognised r.rhen the obligation under the Iiabilitl.'is discharged orcanceliecl or
expires. When an existing financial liabilitl, is replacecl b,v another lionr the same lenderon subsrantialil'
clift'erent tenns. or the tenrs o1'an existing liabilitl, are substantially rrrodified. suclr an exchtrngc or
moclillcation is tretrted as the dcr'ecogniLion of the clriginal liabilitl ancl the recognition ol'a neu,
liability. The diff-erence in the respective urrrrvirrg anrounts is recognised in the staterrrent ol'prolit ancl

loss.

iii. Oflsetting o[ finirnciaI instrurnents
Financial assets ancl flnancial liabilities are offlet and the net arilollnt is reported in the balance slieet if
thcre is a currentll.'cntbrceable legal right to offset the recognised arnounts and thcre is rrr interrtion to
settle on a net basis. to realise the assets and settle the liabilities sirrtrltaneorrslr.

ir,. Reclassification of financial assets

1-hc Corlpanl'cietcrnrines classillcation Lrt'llnancial asscts ancl liabrlities orr initial recognition. ,,\iicr
initial recognitiorr. no reclassiflcation !s nrade lbr flnancial assets rvhich are eqLritr inslruments and
flnancial liabilitjes. For tlnancial asscts'"vhicir are clebt instrurilents. a leclassillcation is rnacle only if
tlrere is a change in the bLisiness rnoclel lor nranaginu those assets. Changes to the business nrodel are
expected to be infr.ecluent. The Conrpany's serriol rrranagernent detenrrirres clrange in thc bLrsiness nrodcl
as a result o[' external or irrternal changes which are signitlcant to the Cornpan)'s operirtions. Such

changes are evident to exterual parties. A change in the business nrodei occurs rvlten tlte Corrparr,v-

either begins or ceases to perforil an activity that is significant to its operations. It'the Cornpany
rcclassifies financial assc'ts. it applies the reclassiflcalion prospectivel,v tiorn the reclassillcatir:n date

u,hich is the tlrst day of the inrmediatel-v.- next reporting periocl lbllorving the chanse irr busirress nroclel.

The Cornpanl.'does not restate anv previouslv recognised gains. losses (including irnpairrnent gains or
losses) or interest.

J.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-llnancial assets inclucling Properry. plant and equipment rvith tlnite lile are evaluatecl for'

recovelability u,herrever thele is arr1.' inr"licatiorl that their calr1.'ing arrounts rlla,y- not be recovcraLrle, Il- any'

such indication exists. the recoverable arnount (i.e. higher olthe tair value less cost to sell and the value-in-
Lrse) is detennined on an individLral asset basis rrnless rhe asset does not gencratc cash t'lo\\s that ale largell
inclepencient olthose liorr other assets. In such cascs. the recoverable arnount is dcterrnined firr the CCU to
rvhich thc asset belongs.

If thr. fecoverable amount olan asset (or CCLI) is estinrated to be less than its carrvin. amounl. the carrf ing
arnount of tlre asset (or CCLJ) is redLrced to its recoverable arrount, An irnpairnrent loss is recognrsed in the
statenrerlt ol'prolit and loss.

For assets excluciing _soodrvill. an assessrnent is nrade at eaclr reporting ciate to deternrinc rvhctlrcr thcre is

an indication that previously recognised rmpairrnent losses no longer exist or have clecreased. It'such
indication exists. the Companl'estirnates the asset's or CCU's recoverable amount. A previousll
recognised impainrent loss is reversed only' if there lias been a change in the assumptions used ro

detenrine the asset's recoverable amount since the Iast impairment loss rvas rccognised. The reversal is

lirnited so that the carrying anrount o1'the asset cloes not exceed its recoverable anroulrt. nor exceed the
carry'ing alrount that lvould have been deternrined. net of depreciation. had no inrpainrtcnt loss been

h
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Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited
(.111 unuturtls u'e itr IliR lukh.t', tnla.ss othenri.re .;tutatl)

Notes to the financial statement for the yeflr ended 3l illarch 2021

recosnised fbr the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statenlent olprofit ancl loss trpless
the asset is carried at a revalued airount. in rvhich casc. the reversal is treated as a reualuation i.crease.

3.10 Provisions. contingent liabilities and contingent asscts

Provisions are lecognisecl rvhen the Cornpanl,has a present legal or constructivc obligation as a res,lt ol'
past events. it is probablc fhat an oLttllorv ol rcsources u,ill be requrrc.cl to sr.ttle the obligatiorr apci the
alllol-i11t can be reliablv estirratecl, Provisions arc not recognrsccl fitr iirtirrc opcratinq losscs. pr.ovision.rre
rleasured at the present ValLre of tttitnaqenrcrrt's best cslirnillc ot tlte expenrliture reqirirccl to settle the
prescnt obligation at the end olthe reporting penod. [)rovisiorrs ale revierved at each balance sheet clate arrci
acl.iusterl ro rcflcct thc cLrrrcrrt bcst estinrrites.

Il the elf'ect ot'tlic time ralue ol nroner is rraterial. prr:r,isions ale cliscounteci using a currenl pre-tax rate
that retlects ctll'rent utarket assessrnellts ol the tirne value of monel' ancl the rislis ipecitic to the liabilitl .

The increase irt thc provision cjLrc to the passaee of time is recosnised as f'lntrnce cost.

Contirrgent liabilities are disclosed rvhen there is a possiblu oblisation arisin_s. tiorn past events. rhe
existence of rvhich r.vill be conf'irrnecl onlv b;' the occLrrrencc or non-occurrence of'one ol nrorc Lrnucr[ai1
luture events not wholl\ ivithin the control ol the Conrpan\ or a present obligation that arises fionr past
everlts wltere it is either not probable that an oLltflou, ril lesources r.vill be requircri to settle or a reliable
estimate of the amount cannot be nrade. Intbrrnation on cotltingent liabilit_v- is c.lisckrsecl in the Notes to the
I]inancial Statements

Contingent assets at'e not recosnized in the l'inansial stalements. l-{orverrer. it is clisclosed onll rvhen an
intlou'oleconorric benef its is probable.

J,l I E,mploy'ee benel'its

(i) Short-term enrployee benefits:
All ernplo-vee benelits payable whol11, rvithin tu'eli,e nlonths ol renclering the service are classiflecl as
sltoLt-tertrt ernplolee benefits. All short-tenrr ernployee beneflts are accoLrnted on uncliscounted basis
during the accounting period basecl on services renciered br errplolees and leco!.nizecl as expenses in
the Statclncnt oi prr.tfii and loss. A liabiLitf is recognise<l lbr rlie ar:rount exireared to be paicl if the
Cornpany has a pres"^nt legal or constructive obligation to pa)' this ar-nount as a result ol past service
provided by the enrployee and the obligation can be estirnated reliably. Thcse benetrts incrlucle salar.v
and lvages. bonLrs, perfcrrrnance irtcentives. etc.

(ii) Long*ternr ernployee benefits (Post-employment benefits):
The Companl participates in various employ'ee benetlt plans. Post-en'lploytrent benetrts are classifiecl
as either defined contribLrtion plans or defined beneiit plans.

Defi ned contribution plans;
Retiretnent benetit in the tbrrn of proviclent tirnd. pension tirnd ancl crrplol'ec.s'stare insLrrancc schenre
arc ilct'ined contribLttion schemes. The Conrpany'has no obligtrtion^ other than the contribLrtion parable
to the tirncl. Pal'nrents to di'tlned contrihLrtion plan are recognisccl as an e\pense jn the staterne"nt ol
protit and loss rr hen ernplot'ees liavc rentlered serrice entitlirrg thctn to the contributions.

Defined benefit plans - Gratuity:

-['he liabilitl' recognised irr the balance sheet is the present ralue ol the detlnecl beneflt obligation at
the end ol the repoming period less the fair vairre ol plan assets. t'he detined benef'lt obli-gation is
calcLrlated annuallv by acrtrarics using the pro.iectecl unit creclit rnethod.

,4ffi



Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited
t.lll trtrrot.rttt,s rrra in l.\'R lukhs. Ltrtlc.s.r ot/rurtrisa.\tuteLlt

Notes to the linancial statement ftrr the \ear ended 3l NIarch 202{

The present value is deterntined b,t discounting thc estirlatcri litturc cash oLrtlloris b1 ref'erence to
lnarket l"ields ar the errd olthe reporting period on sovernlllerrt boncls that have terrns approximatine
to the terms of the related obligation.

The net itrterest cost is calculatecl by.' applying the discount rate ro rhe net lralance ol the defined
benetit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. 

-[his cost is incluclecl in erriplol ee benefit e\pense
in the statenrent of plofit and loss.

Remeasuretnent gains anel losses arising f)'om erperience adjLrstl.nents ancl changes in acrr.rarial
assulnptions are recognisecl in the period irr rvhich thei occurr. clirectli." irr other conrprcherrsivr; incrrntc..l'he-v- 

are included in retairred earnings in tlie statement olchanges in equit,v ancl in thc balance sheet.

Changes in the presenl value ol the defined beneflt obligation resLrlting iiorn plarr anrendrlents or
cutlailnlents are recognised irrtmediatelr in protit or loss as ptrst service cosr.

(iii) Other benel'its (Cornpensated absences):

"\ccttnrulated cotrrpensatecl absences. rrhiclr arc expected to be availed orericashccl rvithin ll nronths
liont the end ol rhe rear etrcl are treatecl as lhtlrt ternr ernplovee be,nellts. lhc olrlrgatiiln torrulcls the
satle is ttreasltrecl at the L-xpectecl cost o1'acctrnlulating conrpensatecl abserTccs as a result of'the LtnLrsccl
entitlement as al tlre \,ear encl.

Acctrmulatcd cotnpensatecl abscnces. rvhich arc cxpected to bc availe.cl or errcashecl bcyond l2 rnorrths
tiorn the etrcl olthe;--ear end are treatecl as other lons terrn ernployee benci'its. '['he Conrparr.v-'s liabilitl,
is actLrarierlly deterrnined (using the Projected Unit Credit rnethod) at the end of each year. ActLrarial
lossesi gains are recognised in the Statement ol Proflt and Loss in the year in which the1.. arise, The
obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balunce slreet ii the entiry cloes not have an
unconditional light to del'er settlernent {br at le'ast Nvelve nlonths alier the reportin,u periocl. rcgarciless
of u,hen the actual settlement is expected to occut'.

J.l2 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by'dividing the net profit or loss fbr the period attributable to equiry,
shareholders b1,the rveighted averagc'number olequit;- shrrres outstanding during the period.

For tlte pulllose of calculating diluted ealninqs per slrare. tlle net prolit or loss tbr the period atrribLrtable to
eqtrit,v shareholders and the tveightecl averagL' nLrrnbel of shares or-rtstancling clLrring the period arc" acl.jr.rsted
lor the eff'ects ot'all dilLrrive potential ecltriry,shares.

J. I J Segnrent reporting

Operating segnlL"nts are reported in a rrranner consistent with the internal repofiins providecl to the Chief
Operating Decisiorr Maker.

,,t
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Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March2024

5 Intangible assets

Porlicrrlqrs softwares

1:10

1.10

1.10

0.21

0.21

0.42

0.21

0.68

Gross block:
Asat0l April2022
Additions
Disposals

As at 31 March 2023

Additions

Disposals

As at 3l March 2024

Accumulated ainortization:
As at 0l April2022
Charge for the year

Disposals

As at 31 March 2023

Charge for the year

Disposals

As at 31 March2024

Net block:

As at 31 March 2023

As at 3l Mtrch2024 0.47

5X)
g-/

a5



Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited
(All amounts aie in INR Lakhs, unless olherwise staled)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

As at

31 March 2024

As at

31 March 2023Particulars

010
009 009Prepaid exPenses

Security deposits

7 Inventories
(Al cosl or net realisable value whichua is lower)

As at
March 2024

As at

31 March 2023Particulars

Raw materials
Work in progress

Finished goods {including
2023: Rs Nil))

8 Trade receivables

goods-in-transit of Rs Nil (31 Mrch

J]

20.80

53.85

730
t2 8s

33 30

71,71 5r'4:)'-

Particulars
As at

3l March 2024

As at
3l March 2023

Unsecured. considered good : 32 5l
20.46Receivables from others

Receivables from related parties (Refer note 39)

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss

Refer note 34 for information about credit risk and market risk of trade receivables

(l.8s) (0 54)

- 

ts.4z s2'4'L.-

42 9l

50,27 52.97

For trade receivable ageing, refer note 4l

Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars
As at

31 March 2024

As at

3l March 2023

Cash on hand

Balances with banks

In current accounts

In deposit accounts (with original maturity of less than 3 months)
tJzell t'oo0.gl

0.13

26 64

I,100.00

033

20 64

980.00

10 Other financial assets (Current)

Particulars
As at

31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Unsecured, considered good :

Loan and advance to emPloYees

Interest accrued on dePosits

Refer dote 34 for information about credit risk and market risk ofother financial assets

0. l4
10 86

0.10

))6

ll Current tax assets

Particulars
As at

3lMarch2024
As at

31 March 2023

20.54 27 44

Advance tax and tax ted at source, net ot Provlslon

12 Other current assets
As at

3l March 2024

As at

3l March 2023Particulars

Balunce. *ith gouernment authorities
097

I)O

0.03

013
0.82Advance to suPPliers

Prepaid expenses



Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited

(All dnoxnts dre in INR Lakhs, unless olhetvise slated)

Notes to the {inancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

rs nquitv share qpital Il li Il ;l
Particulars 31 March 2024 3l March 2023

Authorised:
5,000 (31 Mrch 2023: 5,000) equity shares of Rs 100 eacb

lssoed, subscribed and Paid-uP:

,- tn 
- 
tt t *u"tr rotl : t,S gZ) equity shaes of Rs 1 00 each' fully paid+tp

ffi
500 500

160160

1.60 1.60

a) Reconciliation ofthe numb
-' .,13l March 2024 As st 31 March 2023

Particulars

vat the beginning of the Year

Add: Share issued duing the Year

Outstanding as at tho end ofthe year

c) Details of shares held by the holding company

lfJ::fiffi:::il1"::il:I"T,ffi::: ,"",* illl;l,T""i,*:;^,lo "u"n 
Each horder or equiry shares is entitred to one vote per share In the event or riquidation

of the conpany, the holders of equity sh{es will be entitled to ,"""i"" "^, "i'rr,"l","li'Ju 
u*"it oi 

'rt" 
c"'np"nv' after distribution of all preferential arnounts The

arr,rii"i."'*lii t" rn proportion tothe number of equity shdes held by the share6olders

As at 3l March 20232024
v"v"

E uitv.nm" of f" l00 each fullY held by

NL/s RHI Magnesita lndia Limited

(including 1 shre held by Mr' Pmnod Sagr as nontnee;

100 00%

ITheCornpanyhasneithela!lottedanyfullypaid-upequityshareby'wayofbonusshres,orinpu.suanttocontlactwithoutpayrnentbeingreceivedincashnorhasbought
back anv class ofequity that"' at'in! th-" i""i"a Jr*! y"- immediately preceding the batanc€ sheet date.

r+ ottrer equitv Il ii Il il
particutars 31 March 2024 3t March 20?3

d) List ofshareholders holding more than 59/o shares ofa class ofshares
As at 3l March 2024

Particulars ofshare V"

Ei@v trt**rn" roo each fullv Paid-up held by
t00 00% 100 00%

M/s RHI Magnesita lndia Limited

(including I shre held by Mr Pmod Sagar as nomlnee)

e) Disclosure of shareholding of promoters

Dquity shares of Rs lo0 each lulry paro-up

Promoter's name
Shareholding 9/o change during the Year

No. ofsharo
oh of toaal

shares
No. of shares Yo of total shares

1,59/

(t,5e7)

I00 oo%

(l oo.oo%)M/s RHI Magnesita lndia Limrted

(including I shre held by M- Pamod SaBr as nomnee)

in brqckel

t.486 49 | ?)4

Retained emings
Capital redeLnPtion reserve

Retained earnings

Balmce at the begiming of the Yea

Add: Profit for the Yer
Balmce at the end of the Yer

Capital redemPtion reserye

Balmce at the begiming of the Yeu

Add: Addition duing the Year

Bala[c€ at the end ofthe Year

T,qst 4o------JlE4-

\446.4e

ff:;,';:,j,:.;;ililpresenrs suprus / accumulared etrnirlgs of the compmv and re available for distriburio' to shaeholders

I Mdch 201 7 md 3l March 201 g, the company bought back certain shares md in order to cornply with the requirernents of the companies

ed CaPital RedemPtion Resewe

|,324 29

16220

1,145 63

t78 66

t324.29

091 091

09r091



Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless olherwise statedl

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 3l Mnrch 2024

Provisions (Non-current) -- -- 
-Particulars Jl March 2024 3l March 2023

15

Provision for emPloYee benefits: 034
t76Gratuity (Refer note 32)

Leave obligation (Refer note 32)

900
475

- 

t3js 2.lo.-

Particulan 3l March 2024 31 March 2023

Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, Plant and equiPment

Total deferred tax liabilities - (A)

Deferred tax assets:

Allowance for expected credit loss

Expenses allowed on payment basis under Income-tax Act' l96l

Total deferred tax assets - (B)

Deferred tax liabilities (net) - (A-B)

38 07 4028

38.07

047

540

40.28

014

232

5.87 2,46

t7 Trade

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

oal out.tunding dr., o mi.,o und tmuil entetptises (Refer note 3l)

Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro and small enterpnses

For trade payable ageing, refer note 42

- 

2t.60 37.98--

14 89

6.71

31 79

6. l9

Pa rticulars 3lllarch2OZ4 31 March 2023

197 7tl
Employee dues PaYable 7.97 7'lt -'-

19

20

liabilities As al
31 March 2024

As at

3l March 2023Particulars

t26 414
Advance frotn custolners

- 

n6 4'14.-

provisions (Current) Al ii Al af
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Provision for emPloYee benefits: 038
054

- 

o.gz o,92--
Gratuity (Refer note 32)

Leave obligation (Refer note 32)
082

Particula rs
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

221
P.wision for taxation, net of advance tax 2.21

22 Other current liabili
Particulars

As at

3l March 2024

As at

3l March 2023

t28 3.96
statutory liabilities



Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited
(AIl amounls are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise slaled)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Mtrch2024

23
For the year ended

3l March 2024

For the year ended

31 March 2023

Revenue from contract with customers:

- from related pa(ies (Refer note 39)

- from others

Other operating revenue:

Govemment incentives on export

Disageresation of revenue:

In the following tables, revenue

depicts how the nature, amount,

factors.

Others

is disaggregated by product group and by

timing and uncertainty of our revenues and

035 0s2

- 
66s.31 sl3'et

geography. The Company believes that this disaggregation best

"*tt 
no*. are affected by industry, market and other economlc

))-oo

609 32

78 75

454 34

533 09

Particulars 3l March 2024 3l March 2023

664:t8 5ii:oe
Shaped products 0 35 0.52

Particulars 3l March 2024 3l March 2023

Within India *

Outside India

* Inclusive of merchant export of Rs 26 50 lakhs during the year (Previous year: Rs 5 1 58 lakhs)

Timing of revenue recognition:

n"*ni. f.,n tute of products is transferred to the customers at a point in time

ft#'jtl#ffifof products is recognised at the point in time when control over the products is passed to the customers' which is

determined based on the individual Incoterms ageed in ttre 
"usionr", 

contract. control is defrned as the ability to direct the use and obtain

substantially all the economic benefits from an sset

xchange for transfening goods or services, to the extent that it is highly

probable that there will not be a significant reve sal ofrevenue

Particulars 3l March 2024 3l March 2023

Adjustments for:
Claims and rebates

Performance bonus 66s-31-------jjil-
Trade receivables and contract balances:

The company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as either a receivable or as contract asset

A receivable is a right to consideration that is unconditional upon passage oftime

contract assets primarily relate to the company's right to consideration for work completed but not bilted at the repo(ing date contract assets

are transferred to receivables when the right become unconditional

contract liabilities consists ofadvance from customers contract liabilities are presented in note l9

Trade receivables are presented net off loss allowance in note 8

ee@_______ ssln
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Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited

1)tt o o** oi, in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise slated)

Notestothelinancia|stBtementsfortheyearended3lMarch2024

alance

at the beginning of the Year
Revenue from contract with customers

Total

Movement in contract assets:

Opening balance at the beginning ofthe year

Add: Revenue recognized during the year

Less: Invoiced during the Year

Closing balance at the end ofthe year

Movement in contract liabilities:
Opening balance at the begiming of the year

Add: Collection during the Year

Less: Gross Sales

Less: Sundry balances written back

Closing balance at the end ofthe year

4.t4
3t2.41
315.27

0.02

1.26

214 31

ztr.23
019

1za 4.r4

Particulars
For the year ended

3l March 2024

For the year ended

31 March 2023

Sundry balances written back

Profit on sale ofproperty, plant and equipment

bain on redemption of mutual fund units

Bad debts recovery

66.

002

34.97

0.20
75.70

0.32

0.01

- 

rrr.29

Interest on term



Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited

Ait'ti"i"u ti, in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Mrrch 2024

25

-nuenory 

of -at"rials at the

Add: Purchases

Less: Inventory of materials at the end ofthe year

iln"."a."yl""."aseininventories
lnventory at the end ofthe YeaI

Work in Progress
Finished goods

Inventory at the beginning ofthe year:

Work in Progress
Finished goods

5 tz 730

- 

32r.s7

74 65

12 85

JJ JU

46 15

946
16 00

For the year ended For the year ended

20 80

53 85

12 85

33 30

-@sa 

@'6'\

Particula rs

Salaries and wages
-ontriUution toltovident and other funds (Refer note 32)

Gratuity (RefeT note 32)

Leave obligation (Refer note 32)

Staffwelfare exPense

6l6iliiuili* 
--.or""iution 
on ptoperty, plant and equipment

Amortization on intangible assets

2024
6l
10

35

27

42 4l
328
168
049
|.76

------------'- ^' 49'62

For the Year ended

For the year ended
Particulars

F tetgn 
"*"hang" 

loss (net)

Power and fuel

Legal and Professional fees

Director sitting fees

Computer exPenses

Repair and marntenance

- building
- plant and machinery

- others

Postage and communlcatlon

Travelling and conveyance

Internet charges

Insurance

Rates and taxes

Payment to auditors (Refer note 38)

Sundry balances written off
Bank charges

Printing and stationery

Freight and transPort charges

Allowance for expected credit loss

Office exPenses

Miscellaneous expenses

2024
005
163
564
100
157

028
0.12

057
0,99
634
008
2.68
061
490
003
003
140

t2 13

l3l
061
011

a.f8-z.os 

-------sE

0s4
151
178
150
180

027
0.02
0.45

083
605
008
052
058
593

0.31

I l5
942
054
058
z )L



Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited
(All amounls are in INR Lakhs' unless othemise staled)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March2024

30 Income tax

The major components ofincome tax expense for the years ended 3l March 2024 and 3l March 2023 are

Stat€ment ofprolit and loss section
For the year ended

31 March 2024

year

3l March 2023

Current incom€ tax:

Current income tax charge

Adjustment in respect of current tax of previous years

Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal oftemporary differences

Income tax expense reported in the statement ofprofit and loss

Other comprehensive income section

64 25

)4J

(3.4 r)

97.22

(l se)

(34 69)

66.27 60.94

221 007
Income tax relating to items that will not bt -!]-tifi"li:-gtdt ot lo*

60.8764.06

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for t

Patticulars
For the yea r ended the year

31March2024 31 March 2023

Accounting Profit before tax

Computed tax exPense

At India's statutory income tax tate of 25163% (31 March 2023: 25 168%)

Adjustments for:

Tax effect ofamounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating income (net)

A-djustment in respecl oI current tax of previous years

Others

235 06

59 16

001
543

(0 s4)

64.06

239 80

60.35

014
(1 se)

198

60.87
At the effective incom€ tax rate 60.8764.06

-"o*tu* 

"*p"n." 
r"pott"d itt th"statement of pro{itand loss

Deferred tax relates to the following

Particulars other comprehensive income

As at For the year ended For the year ended

3l March 2023 3l March 2024 31 March 2023
As at

3l March 2024

Property, plant and equiPment

Allowance for expected credit loss

Expenses allowed on payment basis under lncolne-tax Act

(38.07)

0.47
540

(40 28)

0t4
232

221
0.33

308

84

0. l4
(0 22)

5.62 34.16
t,l"t defer."d tax expense / (income)

Net deferred tax assets / (liabilities)

Deferred tax liabilities
5.87

(40 28)

2.46
Deferred tax assets (32.20) (37.82)
Deferred tax liabilities' net

Reconciliation of deferred tax (liabilil / assets, net
As at

3l March 2024

As at
rch2023

Opening balance as ofAPril 1

Ta,r (income) / expense during the year recognised in statement of profit and loss

(37 82)

(3 4l)
(221)

(72 s8)

(34 6e)

(o 07)
Tax (income) / expense during the year recognised in other comprehenslve lncol'ne

(32.20) (37.82)
Closing balance

The company oftsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set offcurrent tax

the deferred iax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authorlty'

assets and current tax liabilities and



Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited 
-

Tiii oiour, or"i" INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notestothefinancia|statementsfortheyearended3lMilrch2024

31 Dues to micro and small enterprises

30.27

(i) Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid

as at period end

(ii) Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year

end

(iii) Principal amount paid to supplier registered under the MSMED Act' beyond the appointed

day during the Year

(iv) Interest paid, other than under Section 16 oiMSNGD Act' to suppliers registered under the

iristvcl n i, t.tond the appointed day during the period

(v) lnterest paid, under Section 16 ofMSMED Act' to suppliers registered under

Act, beyondthe appointed day during the period

(vi) Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act'

already made

(vii) Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years

ttre MSMED

for payments



Intermetnl Engineers (India) Private Limited..
(All amount ate in INR lakhs, unless olherwise staled)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

32 Employee benefits

,t 
ff||t"ffi:il deternined as a specified percenrage of employees salaries, in respect of qualifying employees towards provident

c,^i -,A ehh which are defined contribution plans. The obligation ofthe Company is limited to the amount contributed and it

;;#il; nstructive obligation The expense recognised during the year are as under:

year For the year ended

to provident fund

Contribution to employee sLate tnsurance

Del-rned Benefit Plan - GratuitY:

31 March 2024 2023

80 2

030 049

sat As at

31 March 20233l March 2024

3.28

t'o 
ff:'lii."#;'X,:1ff?"',"J:i:Jitv ror emprovees in rlar^a as.r.e1'T llf::':19:i..:I"i:i:1,?13 

':T:'.",'"i;'"51".,T;f'l:":",";i:f:n:T;;*":"$?lil,'J;3:il1'""?:il?.ji1ilil1lfiiJ"i :l qi1ffi":r:::::*"t,,:,*i",: :lJ "1f;T?;j;:1il""|]1;"'::?,ffi 
H[l

:ffi*:;fiTl'il"::"i'?:: lI.'.l;:"1"'"iT"iffiJ;llili:!:!;r;i'-;fl.#:tx:il" j;*T:"il';"":li*:,'1il,;J,1i!";TT:'#l,f;
::ffii:11"'J::T:::1',J,'?ffii1"'ffi:H:H1ffiru;:;;r'r';ffiil91'1"":.'*'"1::::'::,:TT::"::"":,T*::J:,T,i:[iil::i
:Tl'$::TJil:n*.;:::J"#:.',,?#:";"J;#:':'#'#i'? '"r4 J.t%{i"';l"i:^.1:"1,:'"" 

of the Companv are managed bv Intermetar

ffi,oifi il,;;;;;;";t*;E ftove" c'oup c'atuitv scheme through Llc Gratuitv Group Plan

Funded

Ch*g". in Defined Benefit Obligation

Definid benefit obligation as at the beginning ofthe year
t7 47

129
129

14 6l
132
105

049

Current servtce cost

Interest cost

Benefit paid

Actuarial (gain) / loss

Defined Benefit Obligation at end ofyear

Change in fair value of Plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginling ofthe year

Expected return on Plan assets

Employer contribution

Benefit paid

Actuariat gain / (loss) on plan rosets

Fair value of plan assets at end of year

Net Defined Benefit Asset / (Liability)

Present value of obligation at the end

Fair value ofPlan assets

Unfunded liability / provision in Balance Sheet

Total expense recognised in the statement of pro{it and loss

Current seruce cosl

Interest cost

Interest lncome

Total expense recognised under employee benefit expense

Total exPense recognised in OCI
a.ctuariai (gain) / lois on defined benefit obligation arising from change in demographic assumptton

,q"tu*iur iluini I loss on defined benefit obligation arising from change in financial assumptton

Actuarial (gain) / loss ofplan assets

Unrecognised actuarial (gain) / loss at the end of year

B. Actuarial AssumPtions:

Discount rate

Salary escalation rate

withdrawl rate

Mortality rate

t6 74

t24
187

999
072
5,82

t9.79

2879
r9 79

17 47

16 74

0.71

695%
lo'lo for 2 Years, 8olo

thereafter
5 00%

(0 4e)
022

7 38Vo

4 500h

5 0004

IALM(2012-14) IALM(2012-14)
58 58

Retirement age (Years)

Assumptions regarding future mortality rate for gratuity is based on actuarial advice in accordance with published statistics and experience

C. Expected contribution for the next one year

The company expecrs ro contribute Rs 2. i2 lakhs (previous year: Rs 1 35 lakhs) to its gratuity plan ln the next year
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Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited.

(AIl amount are in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notestothefinancialstatementsfortheyearended3lMarch2024

33 cs and related components Based on the

f resources' allocation and assessment of
e ian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 108 on

" ' 
as amended'

and

ano

has

The

- Sales within India include sales to customers located within India

- Sales outside India include sales to customers located outside India

Secondary Segment Reporting (by Geographical Segments)

ThefollowingisthedistributionoftheCompany,stota|revenueofoperationsbygeographicalmarket,regardlessofwherethegoodswere

629 96 485 02

48.59Within India *

* Inclusive ofmerchant export ofRs 26 50 rakhs during the year (previous year: Rs 51 58 lakhs)

The fo[owing tabre shows the carrying amount oftrade receivabres by geographicar segments
As at

3l March 2023

Outside India 4a.42 52.43

AU other assets (other than trade receivables) used in the company's business are

."i.g"t-i"t "t.u.tot"r, 
(within India and outside hldia)' accordingly the total cost

intangibte fixed assets has not been disclosed'

Information about major customers

Thereisl(31March2023:Nil)customercontributinginexcessofl0%ofthetotallevenueoftheCompanyamountingtoRsT2l2lakhs
io, tft" V"ui "na"a 

3l March 2024 (31 March2023: Rs Nil)

located in India and are used to cater to both the

incurred during the year to acquire tangible and

F



Intermetal Enginecrs (India) Private Limited
(All qnounl qrc in INR loldxs, unless otheruise stated)

Not€s ao the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March2024

34 Financial instruments - fairvalle measurement

classifications and fair volues

As at 3l March 2023

Carryins Value Fair volue Carruins Vahe Frir vahe
Fin{ncial nssets measured at {mortised cosl
Trade reeivables

Cash md cash equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash eouivalents

Other finecial assets

48 42

t,126 77

il00

48 42

|,126 77

ll00

52 43

1,000 97

568

52 41

1,000 97

568
Total linancial assets I,186.19 I,186.19 1,059.08 1,059.08
Financial liabilities measured .t ef, ortised cost

Trade payables

Other fi nancial liabilities
21 60

'1 97

2t 60

797
3't 98

7 tl
37.98

7tl
Total fi nancial liabilities 29.57 45.09

The mmagement assessed that carying mounts of c6h and cash equivalents, bmk balmces, trade receivables, trade payables, other finmcial assets ud liabilities
approximate their fair value ldgely due to the nature ild short-tem maturities ofthese rnstruments

Fair valre hierarchy

Level I : Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active mtrkets for identical assets or I iabil ities

Level 2: Inputs other thm quoted prices included within Level I that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i e as prices) or indirectly (i e derived
from prices)

Level 3: Inputs for the usets or liabilities that de not bsed on observable maket data (unobseruable inputs)

Financial instruments - risk management

The Compay has exposure to the following risks arising from finacial instruments: credit risk (refer note (b) below); liquidity risk (refer note (c) below); market risk
(refer note (d) below)

(a) Risk nanagement frafiework
The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment ed oversight of the Company's risk management framework The Company,s risk
mmagement policies de established to identiry 4d malyse the risks faced by the Compay, to set appropriate risk limits dd controls md to rnonitor risks ad
adherence to limits Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Compay,s activities

The Compmy's boud oversees how mmagement monitors compliance with the Compmy's risk management policies md procedures, md reviews the adequacy of
theriskmanagementfrmeworkinrelationtotherisksfacedbytheCompany TheCompany,throughitstrainingandmanagementstandardsddprocedures,aimsto
rnaintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk on cash md cash equivalent and bark balmces is not significant as it majorly includes deposits with banks with high credit ratings msigned by
intemational md dornestic credit rating agencies

Credit risk arise from possibility that customer may default on its obligation to make timely payments, resulting into finmcial loss T[e muimum exposure to the
credit ilsk is primarily from trade receivables

The credit risk is managed by the Company through credit term approvals, establishing the financial reliability of the custonrers taking into account the financial
condition,analysisofhistoricalbaddebtsandageingofaccountreceivables Outstmdingcustomerreceivablesaeregulalymonitored Individualcredittermsareso
aordingly by the Company's credit control department

i) Expected credit loss (ECL) assssment for customers as at 31 March 2024 and 3l March 2023

The Company allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade b6ed on a vuiety of data that is detemined to be predictive of the risk of loss (including but not limited
to p6t payment history, security by way of deposits, audited finmcial statements, maragement accounts ad cash flow prcjections) od applying experienced credit
judgement Thefollowingtableprovidesirfomationabouttheexposuretocreditriskandexpectedcreditlossfortradereceivables

Particulars As {t As al
3l lvlarch2O24 3l March 2023

Not due

0-30 days

3l-60 days

6l-90 days

9l-l 80 days

I 8l-240 days

More than 240 days

32 36

l0 72

035

66r

135

t49

008

33 6r

t3 9l

000

258

000

018

52.97

Loss allowance provision - trade receivables

Particulars

Loss allowance as on 3l March 2022

Chmges in loss allowace (Refer note 29)

Loss rllowance as on 31 March 2023

Changes in loss allowmce (Refer note 29)

Loss allowance as on 31 March 2024

054



Intermetrl Englnecrs (India) Privote Limited
(All onounl dru in INR lal:hs, unless olhewise stqted)

Notes to the financial statcm€nts for tbe vear ended 31 March2024

34 Financiaf in3trumen ts - lair yalue m eastrement(Conrinued)

ii) Cash and cash equivalents

The Compmy holds cash ud esh equivalents of Rs 1,126.77 lakhs at 3l Mzrch 2024 (31 March 2023: Rs I,OOO.98 lakhs) The coh and oash equivalents are
mainlyheldwithbmks TheCompanyconsidersthatitscchandcashequivalentshavelowcreditriskbsedonthe€xternalcreditratingsofcounterparties

(c) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Compay will not be able to s€ttle or meet its obligations on time The Compmy's primary sources of liquidity de c6h generate.d
from operations The cmh flows from o!rcmting activities de driven primuily by operating results and chmges in the working capital requirements

The Compay believe that its liquidity position is adequate to fund the operating ild investing needs md to provide with flexibility to respond to further chmges in
the business enviroment

Maturities of fi nancial liabilitis
Particulnrs Carrying Toad 0-12 months l-2 yesrs 3-5 years > 5 years

tmount
As aa 31 Merch 2024

Trade payables

Oths finmcial liabilities

2t 60

't 91

2r.60

791

2t 60

7.97

29.57 29.51

Particulars Carrying
amount

0-12 months l-2 years 3-5 ye{6 > 5 yeors

Ar aa 31 March 2023

Tmde payables

Other finmcial liabilities
31 9A

'l tl
37.98

7ll
37 98

7ll
45.09

(d) Market risk
Maket risk is the risk that chages in milket pri@s, such as foreign exchmge ates, interest rates ild equity prices, which will affect the Compmy's income or the
value of its holdings of finmcial instrunrents The objective of muket risk mmagement is to manage md control mdket risk exposures within ac@ptabre puanerers,
while optimising the return

i) Currency risk
The Compuy opemtes intemationally md is exposed to foreign *chmge risk in relation to operating rctivities (when revenue or expense is denominate.d in a foreign
currency) aising from foreign cunency trmsactions

Foreign currency risk erposure
The Compmy does not have my foreign currency denominated rrceivables or payables as at the end ofreporting yeu and a@ordingly does not have any foreign
currency risk

ii) Interesa rate risk
The Compily does not have my borrowings and accordingly does not have ily interest rate risk

iii) Price risk

The Compey does not have ey invesknents as a! reporting date ild accordingly does not have my price risk

Cspitd management

The Company's objeotives wh€n muaging capital is to saf€guard their ability to continue as a going oncern, so that it co continue to provid€ adequate retums to the
shreholders

The Compmy does not have ay borrowings ad the entire epital comprises of equity

Rb



Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless olhemise stated)

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 3l March 2024

36 Earnings per share

The following table sets forth the computation ofbasic and dilutive eamings per share:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
3l March 2024 3l Mnrch 2023

Net profit for the year attrjbutable to equity shareholders

Weighted average number ofshares

Pa rticulars

168.79

1,597

I 78.86

1 5q7

Note: Basic and diluted earnings per share during the crtrent year are same as the Company has no potentially dilutive equity shares
outstanding as at the year end

Reconciliation ofshares used in computing earnings per share

For the year ended For the year ended
Xl March 2024 31 March 2023

No ofequity shares at the beginning ofthe year

Add: Shares issued during the year

1,597 | {o?

No. ofequity shares at the end ofthe year | 5q7 1,597

Weighted avemge number ofequity shares of Rs I 00 each used for calculation ofbasic and
diluted earnings per share

1.597 I so?

Contingent liabilities and commitments

Contingent liabilities:
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts: Nil (Previous year: Nil)

Commitments:

Estimated amount ofcontracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for: Nil (Previous year: Nil)

Paym€nt to auditors38

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
3l March 2024 3l March 2023

Statutory audit fees

Limited review fees *

Other matters

Out ofpocket expenses

294

t44
0.50

0.02

294

269

030

4.90 5.93
* Including limited review ofinterim special purpose condensed financial statements ofRs Nil (Previous year: Rs 1 25 lakhs)
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Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited

liit- i^ourt, orr'in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stoted)

Notestotheftnanci|lstatementsfortheyearended3lMarch2024
39 Related PartY disclosure

i) Names of related parties and description of relationship

A Rel.ted parties where control exists

RHI Magnesita India Limited, Holding Company (w e f 18 05 2019)

B Key Manrgerial Personnel (KMP):

Mr. Vijay Sharma

Mr. Parmod Sagar

Mr. Sanjeev Bhardwaj

: Non-executive director

: Non-executive director

: Company Secretary (upto 29 Januuy 2023)

iD

Particulars

Sales
RHI Magnesita India Limited +

charges of
and sewice tax

RHI Refractories Africa (Pty) Ltd #

i ,qmount disctosed is inclusive offreight and transport charges of

Rs Nil (Previous Year: Rs 5 85 lakhs)

Compensation of key nanagement personnel

Director sitting fees

- Mr. VijaY Sharma

56.60 78 42

867 1229

iii) Related Party balances

Amounts due to or due from related parties are as followsl

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Trade receivables 7.37 20 46

RHI Maglresita India Limited

^ r ,- 6^^:^r c-^'.;i, ,n?o which would imoact the contributions by the company towards

40



Intermetal Engineers (Indid) Private Limited

(All amounts are in IN R t'akhs, unless otherwise stqled)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

41 Trade receivable ageing schedule

42 Trade PaYable ageing schedule

More than
3 Years

Less than I
year

(;g\";
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Intermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited
(All anounts are in INR Lakhs. unless othenvise staled)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

v)

Subsequent events

There are no subsequent events that have occurred after the reporting period till the date ofthis financial statements'

Additional regulatory information required by Schedule III
Details of benami ProPertY held:

The company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for

holding anY Benami ProPertY.

Wilful defaulter:
The company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or Financial institution or other lender during the year

Relationship with struck off companies:

The Company does not lrave any transactions with companies struck off'

Borrowing secured against current assets:

The company does not have any charges or satisfactjon which is yet to be registered with Roc beyond the statutory period'

Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium:

A. The cornpany has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities

(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectty lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the

company (Ultirnate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries

B. The cornpany has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the

understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that th< Cornpany shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entjties identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the

Funding Party (Ultirnate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries'

vi) Complianc€ with number of layers of companies:

The company does not have any subsidiary, hence compliance with number of layers of companies is not applicable to the

CompanY

vii) Valuation ofProperty, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets: 
^- L^,L i,,,ihd rha ^,,rrenl nr

TheCompanyhasnotrevalueditsproperty,plantandequipmentorintangibleassetsorbothduringthecurrentorpr9vlousyear.

viii) Loans or advances in the nature ofloans to specified persons:

There are no outstanding loans or advances in the nature ofloans granted to Promoters, Directors, key managementpersonnel and

thejr related parties (as iefined under companies Act,20l3), either severally orjointly with any other person'

ix) Compliance with approved Scheme of Arrangement:

The company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial

year.

46 Details ofcrypto currency or virtual currency:

The Company has uot tradld or ir.rvested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the filancial year'

47 Undisclosed income:

The company does not have not any such transaction whjch is not recorded in the books ofaccounts that has been surrendered or

disclosedaSincomeduringtheyearinthetaxassessmentsunlerthelncomeTaxAct,lg6l(suchas,searchorSurveyoranyother
relevant provisions ofthe lncome Tax Act, l96l

4g There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the company

during the Year

4g The company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which tlrere were any foreseeable losses'
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iv)



lntermetal Engineers (India) Private Limited 
..

?iiiti**t *in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notestothe{inancia|statementsfortheyearended3lMarch2024

50Intheopinionoftheboardofdirectors,assets,loansandadvanceshaveavalueonrealizationintheordinarycourseofthebusiness
atleastequaltoth"amou,,tsatwhichtheyarestatedandprovisionforallknownliabilitieshavebeenmade.

tt 
;:;,:""J;:Ij ff::j: have been regro'ped / restated / recrassified, wherever necessary, to co'firm to the curent vea/s

presentation.

As per our rePort ofeven date

For Saini Pati Shah & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 137904W lttll00622

oJ^ t -'rt^r
Som Nath Srini

Partner

MembershiP No .093079

Place: Mumbai
Date'.22MaY2O24

For and on behalf of the board of directors

Intermetal Engineers (India) Privrte Limited
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y Sharma

Director
DIN: 06500871

Place: Gurugram

Director
DIN: 00880113

Place: Gurugram

Date'.22May2024 Dtte"22May2024
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